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The Arnold Farmstead is located on a small/hill dotted with pine trees in gently rolling 
countryside. The nomination consists of ^acres and includes the farmhouse, a large 
barn situated about 300 feet east of the house, a corncrib near the northwest corner 
of the house and an icehouse about 50 feet to the northeast. Several other small 
frame buildings, including a hoghouse, have been destroyed. In front of the house 
was a small garden encircled by a path which led to the road 400 feet south of the 
house; some of the original shrubs remain but the path is overgrown. The old drive 
from the public road passes in front of the house, connects with the farmyard and then 
rejoins the public road. Two acres of land to the west of the house were once a park 
area. Many of its pine trees, which were planted in 1874 when the house was built, 
remain. The farm in Arnold's time contained 400 acres. Since the property is located 
just outside the city limits of Galesville some of the farmland has given way to 
suburban development. Nomination of the five acres will sufficiently preserve the 
rural surroundings of the farm buildings without impeding progress.

House: The house is a two-story, red brick structure. Its main feature is a three- 
story square entrance tower on the south side crowned by a bell-cast mansard roof. 
A stone plaque on the tower bears the inscription "A.A. Arnold, 1874." Stone arches 
decorate the second and third story windows. The main mass is two-stories high, 
covered by a shallowly-sloped hip roof. To the east projects a two-story kitchen 
wing, which is lower in level than the main house. A one-story carriage shed was 
added to the west side of the kitchen wing in the last. 19th century. It is in poor 
condition.

Originally many porches decorated the house. Verandas flanked the tower on the main 
facade. Physical evidence suggests that the veranda extended along the west side of 
the house, too. The front facade of the kitchen wing also had a porch. The old 
verandas have been replaced by newer porches on the southwest corner and on the kit­ 
chen wing.

The main entrance to the house is on the west side of the tower, which contains two 
doors leading into double parlors on the ground floor and a spiral staircase to the 
second floor. The unusually compact ground plan is the same on both floors with 
two large rooms side by side and two small rooms behind them. There never seems to 
have been any hallways in the house.

The kitchen wing has a small stairway leading to the second floor servant's quarters, 
which originally did not connect with the house. In recent years these rooms have 
been occupied by farm help.

The house is in fair condition. The roof and wooden trim are deteriorating. Interior 
changes were made when plumbing was introduced and when the house was changed from 
single family to two-family, including partitioning a back hall, closing a back 
stairway and blocking one doorway. No change was made in the structure or the size 
of the rooms. Therefore, restoration is easily possible.

Barn: The barn is built into a slope so that the animal stalls on the lower level 
are accessible from the east pasture. The upper level appears to have been originally
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divided into a tall center aisle with flanking aisles and galleries. The 
galleries have been removed. The barn is of frame construction with mortise- 
and-tennon joints, an unusual feature in the barns of western Wisconsin. A 
large cupola which once crowned the structure is now gone. The barn has a mansard 
roof with small dormers, board-and-batten siding and a roughly-cut stone foundation, 
The foundation has been replaced by concrete block in several areas and is caving 
away in others. A carriage house was added to the north side of the barn ca. 1900 
and a garage was added on the south ca. 1940.

Corncrib: The corncrib is V-shaped on a raised platform and is covered with a 
gable roof having cantilevered edges. The cantilevered roof on each side of the 
crib is deep enough to cover a wagon. Construction date of this structure is 
uncertain, but probably pre-1900.

Icehouse; This building is at least two, and perhaps three, buildings of very 
close construction dates. The icehouse proper only occupies the north-east 
corner of the total building. It is built of stone which was later encased in 
a brick veneer. The other portions of the building are not interconnected, 
each room having its own exterior door, although at one time at least two of 
them were connected by doors. These additional rooms are conjectured as having 
been a work room and a laundryroom. The brick is very soft and does not appear 
to have been kiln fired. An early engraving of the house indicates two small 
buildings approximately at the present location of the icehouse. The present 
building could have been created by making these two buildings opposite corners 
of a larger structure and enclosing between them.

Other Buildings: Several other frame buildings are reported to have existed. 
A stable-type building is shown to the northwest of the barn in the early view 
from the Wisconsin Historical Atlas. This is approximately the present location 
of the corncrib. A modern milkhouse and silo stand about 250 feet south of the 
barn.
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Arnold, Captain Alexander A., Farm
Galesville vicinity, Trempealeau County, Wisconsin

Additional photo submitted to show details of farm buildings and their relationships 
as pictured in a lithograph of c. 1877. View is from south.

Copy neg. WHi(X3^250525 
11 /in/7?
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The Alexander Ahab Arnold farmstead is significant both architecturally and historically.

Architecture; The house is a good example of late Italianate architecture which dis­ 
plays methods of construction and materials used at the time it was built in 1874. Family 
tradition maintains that Arnold designed the house himself. Family tradition also states 
that Arnold designed the barn to resemble barns in his childhood home of Dutchess County, 
New York. Whether or not this is true, the mansard-roofed barn is unusual in Wisconsin

o '

and unique in Trempealeau County. According to an 1892 biographical dictionary:

This location is one of the most beautiful in the State of Wisconsin, 
rendered more so by the labor and industry of many years. Captain 
Arnold's fine brick residence is situated upon an elevated and 
commanding site, surrounded by shade and ornamental trees, and the 
view from his residence and adjacent elevations are grand and beauti­ 
ful. His farm now contains about 400 acres of excellent land, where 
he has for many years been largely and successfully engaged in 
breeding short-horned cattle and Berkshire swine. ̂

The Galesville Republican called the Arnold house "one of the finest farm homes in the 
state."4

History: Captain Alexander Ahab Arnold (1833-1915) was a man who contributed much to 
the agricultural, educational, cultural and political history of Trempealeau County 
and Wisconsin. According to the Galesville Republican, "a biography of Captain Arnold 
would be a history of Galesville...(he was) a factor in shaping its affairs from that 
time (1857 when he arrived; the community began in 1854) down until his death."^ Some 
of his activities and accomplishments are as follows:

1. Born and raised in Dutchess County, New York, he had academic and professional
training above average, came to Trempealeau County as a lawyer, having attended
Ohio Law School and having been admitted to the bar in New York State.

2. He was an accomplished stockman with knowledge of stock breeding. He brought superior 
bulls, boars and rams to improve his own herds and contributed to better livestock 
throughout the community. He was the first to introduce pure blooded livestock 
into Trempealeau County.

3. He introduced the use of farm machinery in the early days when there was a dearth of 
man power. A McCormick reaper and McCormick combine, as well as many other innovative
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machines, were purchased which were rented to his neighbors but always maintained by 
Mr. Arnold personally.

4. He disseminated agricultural knowledge, by speaking at meetings of Grange chapters 
and Agricultural Institutes. He wrote agricultural essays for the county newspapers 
on such subjects as "How I Raise Hogs," "How I Raise Cattle," "How I Raise Corn," 
etc.

5. He exerted leadership because of his personality, character and ability to communi­ 
cate. He had the ability to get along in two worlds, one the county elite and 
the other less fortunate, less influential and poorer.

6. He organized a company of volunteers in 1862 for participation in the Civil War. 
He recruited and drilled these men and served as Captain for three years.

7. He was a leader in establishing the Trempealeau County Agricultural Society, was 
Vice President in 1859. He contributed the land for the County Fair which was 
sponsored by the Society. He also supervised the construction of the Fair buildings, 
served as superintendent and even contributed oratory to its programs. He also 
supervised the State Agricultural Fair in Madison, Wis. before he was 40. In the 
mid-1880's he was president of the Wisconsin Agricultural Society. His portrait 
hangs in Agriculture Hall at the University of Wisconsin among the pioneers of 
Wisconsin agriculture.

8. A few of many public offices held by Captain Arnold are as follows: He served as
county surveyor and built many early roads and bridges; he acted as district attorney 
in 1858; he was Superintendent of Trempealeau County schools and a member of the 
County Board (1867-8); he was Justice of the Peace and assessor in the early 1870 T s; 
he was a member of the State Assembly (1871) and State Senate (1878-79). He was 
Speaker of the Assembly in 1880; he helped in the affairs of Galesville University 
by serving as the president and a member of the Board of Trustees and Vice President 
of the faculty, and he was a member and elder of the First Presbyterian Church.

9. While a member of the legislature, he obtained the charter for the Galesville and 
Mississippi River Railroad and was president of the company during construction.

Date inscribed in plaque on tower.
Results of windshield survey in Trempealeau County conducted in the summer of 1977.
Biographical Dictionary of La Crosse, TrempeaLeau, and Buffalo Counties, Chicago:

Lewis Publishing Co., 1892.
^"Captain Alexander A. Arnold Called by Death," Galesville Republican, March 4, 1915. 
5 Ibid.
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East 35.0 feet to a Highway right-of-way post; thence North 10° 00' East 254.6 feet 
along the east right-of-way line of U.S.H. 53 to a highway right-of-way post; thence 
North 04* 31' West 104.7 feet to an iron pipe; thence South 89° 31' East 718.0 feet 
along the fence to a steel post; thence South 44° 31 T 31.4 feet to a steel post; 
thence South 01° 02' East 367.8 feet to the point of beginning.

All bearings are referenced to the true bearing of North 05° 48' East of the 
centerline of pavement of U.S.H. 53 as determined by the Wisconsin Division of 
Highways.
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